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The Greek Revival-style East Montpelier Old Brick Church exhibits a gabled 1%-story, 
4x4 bay main block with a recessed steeple astride the roof ridge. The walls are 
laid in eight-course American bond and large granite blocks form the foundation.

The front (south) elevation has two 12/8 windows with rectangular cut granite lintels 
flanking a pair of six-panel Christian doors with large granite lintels and sills. 
The four second-story windows also have 12/8 sash and granite lintels. The large 
recessed triangular panel in the gable is outlined in headers and suggests a full 
pediment, an image initiated by the wide cornice returns. The headers forming the 
angles of the triangle are-cut into small triangular pieces and come to a fine point 
at each angle. In the center of the panel there is a triangular louvered vent, set 
off by a border of brick headers.

There are four tall windows on the side elevations.and two on the rear elevation: all 
have rectangular cut granite lintels and..wooden sills. Originally, each window con­ 
tained fifty small panes of clear glass. One 25/25 window exists on the rear of the 
church. Circa^ 1908, stained glass memorial windows were installed. Three of these 
windows remain; the rest were destroyed by vandals. . Three additional memorial windows 
currently grace the structure. They were salvaged from the North Montpelier Church 
which was demolished in 1954, Because the window openings of that church were larger 
than those of the Old Brick Church, the bottom transoms and some of the side sash of 
the windows had to be cut off before their reinstallation. Today, four memorial win­ 
dows are found on the east side of the church, one on the rear and one on the northern­ 
most bay of the west side. The remaining three windows on the west side have 24 fixed- 
pane sash. There is a central rectangular opening in the apex of tjie rear gable, with 
a granite lintel and wood sill; it is infilled with a plank panel,

A three-stage central steeple dominates the design of the Old Brick Church. The lower 
section of the square base is sheathed in flush boards, with moldings to resemble cut 
stone; above this portion are wide paneled pilasters supporting a full entablature. 
The smaller second stage is the belfry which has rectangular louvered openings. (The 
bell was purchased from the American Bell Foundry Company of Northville, Michigan and 
was installed on June 18, 1897. It bears the inscription, "He Leadeth Me.") Pilasters 
composed of two vertical boards joined by a cap molding flank the louvered openings. 
A full entablature finishes the second-stage composition. A shingled octagonal spire 
completes the steeple. It was constructed in 1952 to replace the steeple's original 
dome and slender spire which were covered in English tin.

Yeaw, Mr. $ Mrs. Arthur.L., editors, A History of the Old Brick Church, 1969. Manuscript 
in the files of the Vermont Division for Historic Preservation, Montpelier, Vermont, 
Includes quotation of "A Brief History of the Society1 ', c. 1898. Page 3. 
Hbid. Page 4. 
Ibid. Page 7. 
Ibid. Page 2.
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The simple interior of the Old Brick Church contains slip pews facing a pulpit along 
the rear wall. Originally, the pews were reversed and a high pulpit was located 
between the two front doors. Circa 1908, the base of the pulpit was sawn off and 
the top portion installed along the rear wall, and the pews turned around. A choir 
loft over the high pulpit was closed in at this time, also.

Associated with, and next to the church, is a modern 2%-story, wood frame gabled roof 
Sunday School building built c. 1960. It exhibits a cement foundation, paired 8/8 
windows, a clapboarded exterior with a wide cornice with returns, corner boards, a 
simple beltcourse at the second floor level, and a triangular louvered vent in each 
gable. An exterior staircase between the church and the Sunday School leads to a 
second-story entrance on the side of the school. The open entrance porch is supported 
on joists which extend to the sidewall of the church.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Old Brick Church is the visual, religious, and social focus of East Montpelier 
village, settled in 1825. Architecturally, it is an excellent example of a masonry 
Greek Revival Vermont meeting house, •

The structure is prominently sited at the junction of two major highways (U.S. Route 
2 and Vermont Route 14), and is a landmark for both natives and travelers.

The land for the church was donated by Arthur Daggett and construction of the church, 
originally called the East Village Meeting House, began in 1833 and was completed the 
following year. The building was built by Stillman and Truman Kelton-and three other 
men at a cost of $18,000. Their excellent craftsmanship is evidenced by the fine 
brickwork in the unusual borders of the tympanum panels. (Some of the same workmen 
were also employed to build Vermont^ second State House, designed by Ammi B. Young 
and constructed in brick and granite from 1833 to 1838.) Bricks for the church were 
made locally. The interior woodwork was done by a man from Cabot, Vermont.

Originally, the Old Brick Church served both Methodist and Universalist congregations. 
Circa 1858, the Methodists withdrew, leaving the Universalists sole use of the church. 
In 1864, Reverend Olympia Brown, the first ordained woman in the Universalist Church 
in the United States, preached in the church. Between 1940 and 1951, the church was 
only used for summer services. It was reopened for year-round use in 1952, and now 
serves Universalists, Methodists, Baptists> and Congregationalists as a united church 
with a resident minister who also serves the Old Meeting House in East Montpelier Cen­ 
ter (nominated to the National Register, April 9, 1980).

The Old Brick Church stands out against the more common wooden churches in the area. 
The exterior looks much the same as it did when it was built. Although the spire has 
been altered, its design is compatable with the rest of the tower, and does not detract 
from the impact of the overall design, solidly executed in heavy masonry.

The lighter wood-frame construction, smaller scale, and common ornament of the neigh­ 
boring Sunday School building help to minimize any distraction from the church that 
it presents.

The boundary of the nominated property is the same as the boundary of the Old Brick 
Church lot. Streets form the southern and eastern boundaries of the property. A 
steep hill to the west of the Sunday School building forms a topographic and visual 
boundary. To the north, a sharp change in use and architectural style defines the 
nomination's boundary,

Child, Hamilton, Gazetteer of Washington County^ Vermont. Syracuse: The Syracuse 
Journal Company, 1889.
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